

Nomination and Remuneration Policy¹

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1. OBJECTIVE	2
2. DEFINITIONS	2
3. ROLE OF COMMITTEE	3
4. MEMEBRSHIP	7
5. CHAIRPERSON	7
6. FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS	7
7. COMMITTEE MEMBERS' INTEREST	7
8. SECRETARY	7
9. VOTING	7
10. NOMINATION DUTIES	8
11. REMUNERATION DUTIES	8
12. REVIEW/AMENDMENT	8
13. ANNEXURE A – PERFORMANCE EVALUATION POLICY	9

¹ Last amended by the Board of Directors on January 21, 2025



Nomination and Remuneration Policy

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy ('Policy') is framed pursuant to the requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") read with the applicable Rules thereto, provisions of Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 ('SEBI Regulations') read with Part D of Schedule II of SEBI Regulations, as amended from time to time.

This Policy has been developed and implemented by the Nomination, Remuneration Committee and is applicable to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the Company.

1. OBJECTIVE

The Key Objectives of the Committee would be:

- **1.1.** To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management.
- **1.2.** To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the Board for further evaluation of the Board.
- **1.3.** To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management.
- **1.4.** To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management reward linked directly totheir effort, performance, dedication and achievement relating to the Company'soperations.
- **1.5.**To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial persons and create competitive advantage.
- 1.6. To devise a policy on Board diversity
- **1.7.** To develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan.

2. DEFINITIONS

- **2.1.** Act means the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, as amended from time to time.
- **2.2. Board** means Board of Directors of the Company.
- **2.3. Directors** mean Directors of the Company.

2.4. Key Managerial Personnel means

- Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager;
- Whole-time director;
- Chief Financial Officer;
- Company Secretary; and
- Such other officer as may be prescribed.

2.5. Senior Management shall mean officers/personnel of the listed entity who are members of its core management team excluding board of directors and normally this shall comprise all members of management one level below the chief executive officer/managing director/whole time director/manager (including chief executive officer/manager, in case they are not part of the board) - and shall specifically



include the functional heads, by whatever name called and the persons identified and designated as key managerial personnel, other than the board of directors, by the listed entity.

3. ROLE OF COMMITTEE

3.1. Matters to be dealt with, perused and recommended to the Board by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The Committee shall:

- **3.1.1.** Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director.
- **3.1.2.** Identify persons who are qualified to become Director and persons who may be appointed in Key Managerial and Senior Management positions in accordance with the criteria laid down in this policy.
- **3.1.3.** Recommend to the Board, appointment along with remuneration and removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel.
- **3.1.4.** To formulate the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of directors.
- **3.1.5.** To evaluate the extension or continuation of the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors.
- **3.1.6.** To devise a policy on diversity of Board of Directors.
- **3.1.7.** For every appointment of an independent director, the Committee shall evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of an independent director. The person recommended to the Board for appointment as an independent director shall have the capabilities identified in such description. For the purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the Committee may:
 - a. use the services of an external agencies, if required;
 - b. consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and
 - c. consider the time commitments of the candidates.

3.2. Policy for appointment and removal of Director, KMP and SeniorManagement

3.2.1. Appointment criteria and qualifications

- **a)** The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the Board his / her appointment.
- **b)** A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he / she is considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person is sufficient / satisfactory for the concerned position.



c) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole-time Director who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the justification for extension of appointment beyond seventy years.

3.2.2. Term / Tenure

a) Managing Director/Whole-timeDirector:

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Executive Chairman, Managing Director or Executive Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of term.

b)Independent Director:

An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.

No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly. *However, if a person who has already served as an Independent Director for 5 years or more in the Company as on October 1, 2014 or such other date as may be determined by the Committee as per regulatory requirement; he/ she shall be eligible for appointment for one more term of 5 years only.*

At the time of appointment of Independent Director, it should be ensured that number of Boards on which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent Director and three listed companies as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed company or such other number as may be prescribed under the Act.

3.2.3. Evaluation

The Committee shall carry out an evaluation of performance of every Director at regular interval (yearly).

3.2.4.Removal

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any other applicable Act, rules and regulations thereunder, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and regulations.



3.2.5.Retirement

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company.

3.3 Policy relating to the Remuneration for the Whole-time Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel

3.3.1 General:

- a) The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to the Whole-time Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel will be determined by the Committee and recommended to the Board for approval. The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. shall be subject to the prior/post approval of the shareholders of the Company and Central Government, wherever required.
- **b)** The remuneration and commission to be paid to the Whole-time Director shall be in accordance with the percentage / slabs / conditions laid down in the Articles of Association of the Company and as per the provisions of the Act.
- **c)** Increments to the existing remuneration/ compensation structure may be recommended by the Committee to the Board which should be within the slabs approved by the Shareholders in the case of Whole-time Director.
- **d)** Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Whole-time Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secretary and any other employees for indemnifying them against any liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated as part of the remuneration payable to any such personnel. Provided that if such person is proved to be guilty, the premium paid on such insurance shall be treated as part of the remuneration.

3.3.2. Remuneration to Whole-time / Executive / Managing Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel:

a) Fixed pay:

The Whole-time Director/ KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall be eligible for a monthly remuneration as may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee. The breakup of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, employer's contribution to P.F, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided and approved by the Board / the Person authorized by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee and approved by the shareholders and Central Government, wherever required.



b) Minimum Remuneration:

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay remuneration to its Whole-time Director in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of the Act and rules made thereunder and if it is not able to comply with such provisions, with the previous approval of the Central Government.

c) Provisions for excess remuneration:

If any Whole-time Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration any such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Act or without the prior sanction of the Central Government, where required, he / she shall refund such sums to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The Company shall not waive recovery of such sum refundable to it unless permitted by the Central Government.

3.3.3. Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Director:

a) Remuneration / Commission:

The remuneration / commission shall be fixed as per the slabs and conditions mentioned in the Articles of Association of the Company and the Act.

b) Sitting Fees:

The Non- Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for attending meetings of Board and it's Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed Rs. One Lac per meeting of the Board or Committee or such amount as may be prescribed by the Central Government from time to time.

c) Commission:

Commission may be paid within the monetary limit approved by shareholders, subject to the limit not exceeding 1% of the profits of the Company computed as per the applicable provisions of the Act.

d)Stock Options:

An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company.

4. MEMBERSHIP

- **4.1** The Composition of the Committee shall be as per the requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the applicable Rules thereto and provisions of Regulation 19 of the SEBI Regulations.
- **4.2** Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in the Annual Report.
- **4.3** Term of the Committee shall be continued unless terminated by the Board of Directors.



5. CHAIRPERSON

- **5.1** Chairperson of the Committee shall be an Independent Director.
- **5.2** Chairperson of the Company may be appointed as a member of the Committee but shall not be a Chairman of the Committee.
- **5.3** In the absence of the Chairperson, the members of the Committee present at the meeting shall choose one amongst them to act as Chairperson.
- **5.4** Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting could be present at the Annual General Meeting or may nominate some other member to answer the shareholders' queries.

6. FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS

The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such regular intervals as may be required.

7. COMMITTEE MEMBERS' INTERESTS

- **7.1** A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own remuneration is discussed at a meeting or when his or her performance is beingevaluated.
- **7.2** The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present at the meetings of the Committee.

8. SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company shall act as Secretary of the Committee.

9.VOTING

- **9.1** Matters arising for determination at Committee meetings shall be decided by a majority of votes of Members present and voting and any such decision shall for all purposes be deemed a decision of the Committee.
- 9.2 In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting vote.

10.NOMINATION DUTIES

The duties of the Committee in relation to nomination matters include:

- a) Ensuring that there is an appropriate induction in place for new Directors and members of Senior Management and reviewing its effectiveness;
- b) Ensuring that on appointment to the Board, Non-Executive Directors receive a formal letter of appointment in accordance with the Guidelines provided under the Act;
- c) Identifying and recommending Directors who are to be put forward for retirement by rotation.
- d) Determining the appropriate size, diversity and composition of the Board;
- e) Setting a formal and transparent procedure for selecting new Directors for appointment to the Board;



- f) Developing a succession plan for the Board and Senior Management and regularly reviewing the plan;
- g) Evaluating the performance of the Board members and Senior Management in the context of the Company's performance from business and compliance perspective;
 Making recommendations to the Board concerning anymatters relating to the continuation in office of any Director at any time including the suspension or termination of service of an Executive Director as an employee of the Company subject to the provision of the law and their service contract.
- h) Delegating any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Committee;
- i) Recommend any necessary changes to the Board; and
- j) Considering any other matters, as may be requested by the Board.

11. REMUNERATION DUTIES

The duties of the Committee in relation to remuneration matters include:

- a) to consider and determine the Remuneration Policy, based on the performance and also bearing in mind that the remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract retain and motivate members of the Board and such other factors as the Committee shall deem appropriate all elements of the remuneration of the members of theBoard.
- b) to approve the remuneration of the Senior Management including key managerial personnel of the Company maintaining a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company.
- c) to delegate any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Committee.
- d) to consider any other matters as may be requested by the Board.
- e) Professional indemnity and liability insurance for Directors and senior management.

12. REVIEW/AMENDMENT

This Policy shall be reviewed from time to time by the Board to ensure it meets the requirements of legislation and the needs of Company.

In the event of any conflict between the Companies Act, 2013 or the Listing Regulations or any other statutory enactments ("Regulations") and the provisions of this policy, the Regulations shall prevail over this policy. Any subsequent amendment/modification in the Regulations, in this regard shall automatically apply to this policy and will be ratified subsequently by the Board of Directors.

Nomination and Remuneration Policy



<u>Annexure-A to the Policy on Directors</u> <u>Appointment & Remuneration</u>

"<u>PERFORMANCE EVALUATION POLICY</u>" <u>OF</u> <u>INDIAMART INTERMESH LIMITED</u>



PERFORMANCE EVALUATION POLICY

INTRODUCTION

The Company conducts its operations under the directions of Board of Directors within the framework laid down by various statutes, more particularly by the Companies Act, 2013, the Articles of Association, and policies formulated by the Company for its internal execution. The Company's Board of Directors is dedicated to act in good faith; exercise their judgment on an informed basis, in the best interest of the company and its stakeholders. Accordingly, the present policy for performance evaluation is being put into place in accordance with the requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 which provides for a policy to be formulated and recommended to the Board, setting the criteria, based on which the performance of each and every director including the performance of the Board as a whole shall be assessed by the Board of Directors of the Company. Such an evaluation procedure will provide a fine system of checks and balances on the performance of the directors and will ensure that they exercise their powers in a rational manner.

The Act, under clause VIII of Schedule IV, casts an obligation on part of the Board of Directors for evaluating the performance of Independent Directors. All the directors on the board of a company, except the Independent Director whose performance is being evaluated, will assess the performance of the Independent Director. Accordingly, a report of performance evaluation of each Independent Director of the company would be prepared, which would determine whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the concerned Independent Director or not.

With an aim to maintain an energized, proactive and effective Board, the Board is committed to a continuing process of recommending and laying down the criteria to evaluate the performance of the entire Board of the Company.

As one of the most important functions of the Board of Directors is to oversee the functioning of Company's top management, this Board Performance Evaluation process aims to ensure individual directors ("Directors") and the Board of Directors of the Company ("Board") as a whole work efficiently and effectively in achieving their functions. This policy aims at establishing a procedure for conducting periodical evaluation of its own performance and of its committees and individual directors. Hence it is important that every individual Board Member effectively contributes in the Board deliberations.

EFFECTIVENESS OF THE BOARD

The overall effectiveness of the Board shall be measured on the basis of the ratings obtained by each Director and accordingly the Board shall decide the Appointments, Re-appointments and Removal of the non-performing Directors of the Company. For this reason, based on the fore stated criteria of evaluation the remuneration of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel shall be determined and reviewed from time to time.



RESPONSIBILITY OF BOARD / INDEPENDENTDIRECTORS

It shall be the duty of the Board, who shall be supported by the Management to organize the evaluation process and accordingly conclude the steps required to be taken. The evaluation process will be used constructively as a system to improve the directors' and committees' effectiveness, to maximize their strength and to tackle their shortcomings.

The Board of Directors shall undertake the following activities on an annual basis:

- I. Review the various strategies of the Company and accordingly set the performance objectives for directors, in consistency with varying nature and requirements of Company's business.
- II. The Board as a whole shall discuss and analyse its own performance during the year together with suggestions for improvement thereon, pursuant to the performance objectives.

In conformity with the requirement of the Act, the performance evaluation of all the directors shall be done by the entire Board of Directors, excluding the director being evaluated.

Independent Directors are duty bound to evaluate the performance of non - independent directors and board as a whole. The independent directors of the Company shall hold at least one meeting in a year to review the performance of the non- independent directors, performance of chairperson of the Company and board as a whole, taking into account the views of executive directors and non-executive directors.

EVALUATION FACTORS

The Board of Directors shall pay regards to the following parameters for the purpose of evaluating the performance of a particular director:

In respect of each of the evaluation factors, various aspects have been provided to assist with the evaluation process in respect of performance of Board itself, and of its committees and individual directors as, such evaluation factors may vary in accordance with their respective functions and duties.

Evaluation of Independent Director shall be carried on by the entire Board in the same way as it is done for the Executive Directors of the Company except the Director getting evaluated

Appraisal of Directors/Committees and Board of the Company shall be based on the criteria as mentioned herein below.

<u>Rating Scale</u>

Performance	Rating
Satisfactory	1
Un-Satisfactory	0

The Company has chosen to adopt the following Board Performance Evaluation Process:

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Some of the specific issues and questions that should be considered in a performance evaluation of Page **11** of **15**



Independent Director, in which the concerned director being evaluated shall not be included, are set out below:

Name of Director being assessed:_____

S. No.	Assessment Criteria	Rating	Remarks/ Comments
1.	Attendance and participations in the meetings		
2.	Raising of concerns to the Board		
3.	Safeguard of confidential information		
4.	Rendering independent, unbiased opinion and resolution of issues at meetings		
5.	Initiative in terms of new ideas and planning for the Company		
6.	Safeguarding interest of whistle-blowers under vigil mechanism.		
7.	Timely inputs on the minutes of the meetings of the Board and Committee's, if any		
8.	Disclosure of Interest & Disclosure of Independence		
9.	Compliance with Companies Act, Ethical Standards & Code of Conduct of the Company		
10	Interpersonal Relations with other Directors & Management.		
11	Understanding of the Company and the external Environment in with the Company Operates and Contribution in Strategic Decisions.		

NON – INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS / EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Some of the specific issues and questions that should be considered in a performance evaluation of Chairperson/Non-Independent Director / Executive Director by Independent Directors, in which the concerned director being evaluated shall not be included, are set out below:

Name of Director being assessed:_____

S. No.	Assessment Criteria	Rating	Remarks/ Comments
1.	Leadership initiative		



2.	Attendance and participations in the meetings	
3.	Initiative in terms of new ideas and planning for the	
	Company	
4.	Team work Attributes & supervision and Training staff	
	members.	
5.	Contribution towards growth of the Company including	
	actual visa-vis budgeted Performance	
6.	Professional skills, problem solving, and decision-making	
7.	Compliance with policies of the Company, ethics, code of	
	conduct, etc.	
8.	Strategic Planning-Financial and Business and	
	implementation of Internal Financial Controls.	
9.	Reporting of frauds, violation etc.	
10.	Safeguarding of interest of whistle blowers under vigil	
	mechanism	
11.	Timely inputs on the minutes of the meetings of the Board	
	and Committee, if any	
12.	Disclosure of Interest	
13.	Compliance with Companies Act, Ethical Standards & Code	
	of Conduct of the Company	

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Some of the specific issues and questions that should be considered in a performance evaluation of the entire Board by Independent Directors are set out below:

S. No.	Assessment Criteria	Rating	Remarks/ Comments
1.	The Board of Directors of the company is effective in decision making.		
2.	The Board of Directors is effective in developing a corporate governance structure that allows and encourages the Board to fulfil its responsibilities.		
3.	The Company's systems of control are effective for identifying material risks and reporting material violations of policies and law.		
4.	The Board reviews the organization's performance in carrying out the stated mission on a regular basis.		
5.	The Board of Directors is effective in providing necessary advice and suggestions to the company's management.		



6.	Is the board as a whole up to date with latest developments in the regulatory environment and the market.	
7.	The information provided to directors prior to Board meetings meets your expectations in terms of length and level of detail.	
8.	Board meetings are conducted in a manner that encourages open communication, meaningful participation, and timely resolution of issues.	
9.	The Board Chairman effectively and appropriately leads and facilitates the Board meetings and the policy and governance work of the board.	
10	 The Board appropriately considers internal audit reports, management's responses, and steps towards improvement. 	
11	. The Board oversees the role of the independent auditor from selection to termination and has an effective process to evaluate the independent auditor's qualifications and performance.	

COMMITTEES OF BOARD

The Committee(s) of the Board for the purpose of this clause shall include all the committees as may be constituted by the Board of Directors from time to time.

For evaluating the performance of each committee, the Board of Directors shall pay regards to the following aspects as set out in the annexure below:

S. No	Audit Committee (for Audit Committee members only)	Rating	Remarks/ Comments
1.	The Composition and size of the Committee are appropriate		
2.	Committee meetings are conducted in a manner that encourages open communication, meaningful participation and timely resolution of issues		
3.	Timely inputs on the minutes of the meetings		

S. No.	Nomination, Remuneration and Compensation Committee (For Nomination, Remuneration and Compensation Committee members only)	Rating	Remarks/ Comments
1.	The Composition and size of the Committee are appropriate		
2.	Committee meetings are conducted in a manner that communication, meaningful participation and timely resolution of issues		



3.

Timely inputs on the minutes of the meetings

REVIEW

The performance evaluation process will be reviewed annually by the "Nomination and Remuneration Committee".

Subject to the approval of Board of Directors, the Committee may amend the Policy, if required, to ascertain its appropriateness as per the needs of the Company.

DISCLOSURE

Company will disclose details of its Board Performance Evaluation processes in its Board's Report. The Board's report containing such statement shall indicate the manner in which formal evaluation has been made by the Board of its own performance and that of the committees of the Board and individual directors of the Company.